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Distribution Policy 
Dividend and Income Fund (the “Fund”), acting pursuant to a Securities
and Exchange Commission exemptive order and with the approval of
the Fund’s Board of Trustees (the “Board”), has adopted a policy, con-
sistent with its investment objectives and policies, to provide share-
holders with a relatively stable cash flow per share (the “Distribution
Policy”). The Fund currently distributes $0.20 per share on a quarterly
basis, and currently expects to maintain this distribution rate except
for, among other things, extraordinary distributions and potential dis-
tribution rate increases or decreases to enable the Fund to comply with
the distribution requirements for regulated investment companies
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The Distribu-
tion Policy may be amended, suspended, or terminated by the Board
without prior notice to shareholders; however, at this time, there are
no reasonably foreseeable circumstances that might cause its termi-
nation. The suspension or termination of the Distribution Policy could
have the effect of creating a trading discount (if the Fund’s stock is
trading at or above net asset value) or widening an existing trading dis-
count. Distributions may be paid in part or in full from net investment
income, realized capital gains, return of capital, or a combination
thereof. Shareholders should note, however, that if the Fund’s aggre-
gate net investment income and net realized capital gains are less than
the amount of the distribution level, the difference will be distributed
from the Fund’s assets and will constitute a return of the shareholder’s
capital. A return of capital may occur, for example, when some or all of
the money that a shareholder invested in the Fund is paid back to the
shareholder. Distributions do not necessarily reflect the Fund’s invest-
ment performance and should not be confused with “yield” or “in-
come.” Additionally, a return of capital is not taxable; rather it reduces
a shareholder’s tax basis in his or her shares of the Fund. 

The Fund is subject to U.S. corporate, tax, and securities laws. Under
U.S. tax accounting rules, the amount of distributable net income is
determined on an annual basis and is dependent during the fiscal

year on the aggregate gains and losses realized by the Fund and, to a
lesser extent, other factors.  Therefore, the actual amounts and
sources of the amounts for tax reporting purposes will depend upon
the Fund’s investment experience during the entirety of its fiscal year
and may be subject to changes based on tax regulations. Under the In-
vestment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “Company Act”),
however, the Fund is required to indicate the source of each distribu-
tion to shareholders in a Section 19(a) notice. The amounts and
sources of distributions reported in the Section 19(a) notices are only
estimates based on book basis earnings, are likely to change over
time, and are not being provided for tax reporting purposes.  The
amounts and sources of distributions year-to-date may be subject to
additional adjustments.

As of the Fund’s fiscal year end, actual amounts and sources for tax
reporting purposes of the distributions will be determined and reported
to shareholders on Form 1099-DIV.  The Fund’s total return perform-
ance on a net asset value basis is presented in its financial highlights
table. There is no guarantee that the Fund’s current Distribution Pol-
icy will reduce or eliminate the Fund’s market price discount to its net
asset value per share, if any, and the Fund’s trustees have no fiduci-
ary duty to take action, or to consider taking any action, to narrow any
such discount. 

Shareholders should not draw any conclusions about the Fund’s in-
vestment performance from the amount of the Fund’s distributions or
from the Distribution Policy.  The Fund is subject to risks that could
have an adverse impact on its ability to maintain level distributions. Ex-xx
amples of potential risks include, but are not limited to, economic
downturns impacting the markets, equity securities risk, corporate
bonds risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, leverage and borrowing risk,
and other risks discussed in the Fund’s filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
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PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS
June 30, 2019

Security Holdings by Sector on June 30, 2019*

TOP TEN 
SECURITY HOLDINGS

1 Credit Acceptance Corporation 

2 Tractor Supply Company  

3 AutoZone, Inc. 

4 PACCAR Inc.   

5 Apple Inc.    

6 Tyson Foods, Inc., Class A  

7 TE Connectivity Ltd  

8 The Walt Disney Company  

 9 Skyworks Solutions, Inc. 

10 Broadcom Inc. 

 

June 30, 2019

Top ten security holdings and industries are shown for informational purposes only and are subject to change. The above portfolio information
should not be considered as a recommendation to purchase or sell a particular security and there is no assurance that any securities will remain
in or out of the Fund.

* Based on approximate percentages of net assets and may not
add up to 100% due to leverage, cash or other assets, rounding,
and other factors. Allocations of less than 1% in the aggregate
are not shown. Allocations are subject to change.

TOP TEN 
INDUSTRIES

1 Electronic and Other Electrical Equipment and 
Components, except Computer Equipment 

2 Transportation Equipment  

3 Communications 

4 Chemical and Allied Products  

5 Security and Commodity Brokers, Dealers,  
Exchanges and Services  

6 Industrial and Commercial Machinery and  
Computer Equipment  

7 Transportation by Air   

8 Non-Depository Credit Institutions  

9 Building Materials, Hardware, Garden Supply, 
        and Mobile Home Dealers 

10 Holding and Other Investment Offices

June 30, 2019

Top ten security holdings comprise approximately 20% 
of total assets.

Consumer Cyclical (20.37%)

Industrials (19.21%) 

Technology (16.86%) 

Financial Services (16.02%) 

Consumer Defensive (11.73%)

Basic Materials (7.17%)

Healthcare (6.26%)

Real Estate (4.08%)

Communication Services (2.99%) 

Energy (2.39%)
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS
June 30, 2019

Dear Fellow Shareholders:  
It is a pleasure to welcome each of our new shareholders to Dividend
and Income Fund and to submit this 2019 Semi-Annual Report. The
Fund seeks to achieve its primary investment objective of high cur-rr
rent income and secondary objective of capital appreciation by in-
vesting, under normal circumstances, at least 50% of its total assets
in income generating equity securities. These securities may include
dividend paying common stocks, convertible securities, preferred
stocks, securities of registered investment companies, exchange
traded funds organized as investment companies or otherwise, real
estate investment trusts, depositary receipts, and other equity re-
lated securities. Of course, there can be no assurance that the Fund
will achieve its objectives.

Economic and Market Report  
During the June 2019 meeting of the Federal Open Market Commit-
tee (“FOMC”) of the Federal Reserve Bank (the “Fed”), the Fed’s staff
reviewed economic data including the unemployment rate, GDP
growth, inflation, and wage growth. The FOMC stated “that labor mar-rr
ket conditions remained strong.” The committee noted that “[t]he
unemployment rate declined to 3.6 percent in April and remained
there in May, its lowest level in 50 years.”  The FOMC also discussed
GDP which “appeared to be rising at a moderate rate in the second
quarter.” Inflation defined as “total consumer prices, as measured by
the PCE price index, increased 1.5 percent over the 12 months end-
ing in April.” Finally, the staff wrote that “average hourly earnings for
all employees rose 3.1 percent over the 12 months ending in May.”

In financial markets, the Fed staff noted “investors’ concerns about
downside risks to the economic outlook weighed on financial mar-rr
kets over the intermeeting period. Market participants cited nega-
tive news about international trade tensions and, to a lesser extent,
soft U.S. and foreign economic data as factors that contributed to
these developments.” Yet, the staff opined that “financing conditions
for businesses and households generally remained supportive of
economic growth.”

After reviewing the economic data, the FOMC discussed their future
outlook, which reflected some caution and uncertainty.  “The projec-
tion for U.S. economic activity prepared by the staff for the June FOMC
meeting was revised down somewhat on balance. Real GDP growth
was forecast to slow to a moderate rate in the second quarter and
move down to a more modest pace in the second half of the year, pri-
marily reflecting a more downbeat near-term outlook for business
fixed investment.” The minutes of the meeting highlight that “[a]lmost
all participants continued to expect GDP growth to slow over the
projection period, with the median projection at 2.0 percent in 2020o
and at 1.8 percent in 2021.” The FOMC decided to maintain the cur-rr
rent level for interest rates but “they generally agreed that risks

and uncertainties surrounding the economic outlook had intensified
and many judged that additional policy accommodation would be war-rr
ranted if they continued to weigh on the economic outlook.” 

In general, the FOMC appears to be expecting economic growth to
continue in 2019 and then slow slightly. Accordingly, we believe that
investors might anticipate favorable, although possibly volatile, mar-rr
kets in the second half of 2019, and that economic and markets
risks suggest a careful strategy.

Investment Strategy and Returns  
In view of these economic and market developments, the Fund’s
strategy in the first half of 2019 was to seek companies with strong
operations showing superior returns on equity and assets with rea-
sonable valuations. Generally, the Fund purchased and held income
generating equity securities of profitable, growing, and conservatively
valued companies across a broad array of industries in seeking to
achieve its primary investment objective of high current income and
secondary objective of capital appreciation and sold investments
that appeared to have appreciated to levels reflecting full or over-val-
uation. In the six months ended June 30, 2019, the Fund’s net in-
vestment income, net realized gain on investments, and unrealized
appreciation on investments were, respectively, $1,010,401,
$1,613,908, and $30,525,872, which contributed materially to the
Fund’s net asset value return of 21.90%, including the reinvestment
of dividends, as did dilution occurring under the Fund’s dividend rein-
vestment plan. Profitable sales in the period were made of, among
others, shares of Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc. in the communica-
tions sector and Cohen & Steers, Inc. in the security and commodity
brokers, dealers, exchanges, and services sector. Losses were taken
on, among others, The GAP, Inc. in the apparel and accessory stores
sector and Big Lots, Inc. in the general merchandise stores sector.
Although no particular investment was responsible for the majority of
the unrealized appreciation or depreciation on investments over the
period, Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc. in the miscellaneous retail sec-
tor and The Kroger Co. in the food stores sector were material con-
tributors to unrealized depreciation during the period. At the same
time, the Fund benefited from unrealized appreciation from its hold-
ings of Credit Acceptance Corporation in the non-depository credit
institutions sector and Tyson Foods, Inc. in the food and kindred prod-
ucts sector.

The Fund’s market return for the first half of 2019, also including the
reinvestment of dividends, was 25.30%. Generally, the Fund’s total
return on a market value basis will be higher than total return on a
net asset value basis in periods when there is a decrease in the dis-
count or an increase in the premium of the market value to the net
asset value from the beginning to the end of such periods. For com-
parison, in the same period, the S&P 500 Index total return was
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18.54%. This index is unmanaged and does not reflect fees and ex-
penses, nor is it available for direct investment. At June 30, 2019, the
Fund’s portfolio included approximately 100 securities of different
issuers, with the top ten amounting to approximately 20% of total as-
sets. At that time, the Fund’s investments totaled approximately
$201 million on net assets of approximately $187 million and lever-rr
age of approximately $14 million. As the Fund pursues its primary
investment objective of seeking high current income, with capital ap-
preciation as a secondary objective, these holdings and allocations
are subject to change at any time.

Quarterly Distributions  
On June 3, 2019, the Fund declared a distribution of $0.20, its sec-
ond distribution of the year, bringing the annual total to $0.40 per
share. The quarterly distribution reflects the Fund’s current distri-
bution policy to provide shareholders with a relatively stable cash
flow per share. There is no guarantee that the Fund’s current distri-
bution policy will reduce or eliminate the Fund’s market price dis-
count to its net asset value per share and the Fund’s trustees have
no fiduciary duty to take action, or to consider taking any action, to
narrow any such discount. The distribution policy may be changed
or discontinued without notice.

Based on the Fund’s results and estimates as of June 30, 2019 of
the sources, (i) in the June 30, 2019 quarter, for the distribution of
$0.20 per share are approximately 15% from net investment income,
0% from realized capital gains, and 85% from return of capital or
other capital source, and (ii) in the 2019 fiscal year-to-date which
commenced on January 1, for the year-to-date cumulative distribu-
tions of $0.40 per share are approximately 20% from net investment
income, 33% from realized capital gains, and 47% from return of cap-
ital or other capital sources. Shareholders should not draw any con-
clusions about the Fund’s investment performance from the amount
of this distribution. The amounts and sources of distributions re-
ported are only estimates based on book basis earnings, are likely to
change over time, and are not being provided for tax reporting pur-rr
poses. The actual amounts and sources of the amounts for tax re-
porting purposes will depend upon the Fund’s investment experience
during the entirety of its fiscal year and may be subject to changes
based on tax regulations. The amounts and sources of distributions
year-to-date may be subject to additional adjustments.

The Fund intends to send shareholders a form 1099-DIV for the cal-
endar year that will instruct how to report these distributions for fed-
eral income tax purposes. Distributions may be paid in part or in full
from net investment income, realized capital gains, return of capi-
tal, or a combination thereof. Shareholders should note, however,

that if the Fund’s aggregate net investment income and net realized
capital gains are less than the amount of the distribution level, the
difference will be distributed from the Fund’s assets and will consti-
tute a return of the shareholder’s capital. A return of capital may
occur, for example, when some or all of the money that a shareholder
invested in the Fund is paid back to the shareholder. Distributions do
not necessarily reflect the Fund’s investment performance and
should not be confused with “yield” or “income.” Additionally, a return
of capital is not taxable; rather it reduces a shareholder’s tax basis
in his or her shares of the Fund.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan  
For those shareholders who are currently receiving the Fund’s quar-rr
terly distributions in cash but are interested in adding to their ac-
count through the Fund’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan (the “Plan”),
we encourage you to review the Plan set forth later in this document
and contact the Fund’s Transfer Agent, who will be pleased to assist
you with no obligation on your part.

Fund Website  
The Fund’s website, www.DividendandIncomeFund.com, provides in-
vestors with investment information, news, and other material about
the Fund. The website also has links to SEC filings, performance, tax,
and daily net asset value reporting. You are invited to use this re-
source to learn more about the Fund.

Portfolio Management Change 
Since March 2014, Thomas B. Winmill has acted as a portfolio man-
ager and on September 1, 2017, William M. Winmill became a co-
portfolio manager of the Fund. Effective July 29, 2019, Thomas B.
Winmill will act as sole portfolio manager of the Fund.
 
Management’s Long Term Focus  
We thank you for investing in the Fund and share your enthusiasm for
its potential, as evidenced by the fact that affiliates of the Invest-
ment Manager own approximately 9.1% of the Fund’s outstanding
shares pursuant to the Fund’s governing documents that permit own-
ership of more than 4.99% of the Fund’s outstanding shares only
with the prior approval of the Fund’s Board of Trustees. We look for-rr
ward to serving your investment needs over the years ahead.

Sincerely,

Thomas B. Winmill
President and Portfolio Manager

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS
June 30, 2019
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See notes to financial statements.

SCHEDULE OF PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS
Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 (Unaudited)

 
Common Stocks (101.88%) Shares Value Shares Value 

Automotive Dealers and Gasoline Service Stations (2.46%)  
AutoZone, Inc. (a)  4,200  $ 4,617,774 

Automotive Repair, Services, and Parking (1.41%)  
AMERCO 7,000 2,649,850 

Building Materials, Hardware, Garden Supply, and Mobile Home 
Dealers (4.13%)  
The Home Depot, Inc. 15,000 3,119,550
Tractor Supply Company  42,500 4,624,000 

7,743,550 

Business Services (2.12%)  
Robert Half International Inc.  44,000 2,508,440 
United Rentals, Inc. (a)  11,000 1,458,930 

3,967,370

Chemical and Allied Products (7.34%)  
Amgen Inc.  16,000 2,948,480 
Celanese Corporation  22,500 2,425,500 
LyondellBasell Industries N.V.  Class A 35,000 3,014,550 
Roche Holding Ltd. ADR 80,000 2,808,000 
Westlake Chemical Corporation  37,000 2,570,020 

13,766,550 

Communications (8.29%)  
AT&T Inc.  79,000 2,647,290
Comcast Corporation  70,000 2,959,600
Discovery, Inc. (a)  110,000 3,377,000
The Walt Disney Company  25,500 3,560,820 
Viacom Inc. Class B  100,000 2,987,000 

15,531,710 

Depository Institutions (3.64%)  
Citizens Financial Group, Inc.  62,500 2,210,000 
Signature Bank Corp.  20,500 2,477,220 
Wells Fargo & Company  45,000 2,129,400 

6,816,620 

Educational Services (1.09%)  
Grand Canyon Education, Inc. (a)  17,500 2,047,850 
 
Electronic and Other Electrical Equipment and Components, except 
Computer Equipment (11.35%)  
Acuity Brands, Inc.  24,000 3,309,840
Applied Materials, Inc.  50,000 2,245,500
Broadcom Inc.  11,750 3,382,355
Intel Corporation  65,000 3,111,550 
Methode Electronics, Inc.  50,000 1,428,500 

Skyworks Solutions, Inc.  45,000 $ 3,477,150
Taiwan Semiconductor 
  Manufacturing Company Ltd.  40,000 1,566,800
Texas Instruments Incorporated  24,000 2,754,240 

21,275,935

Fabricated Metal Products, except Machinery and Transportation 
Equipment (1.41%)  
Snap-on Incorporated  16,000 2,650,240 

Food and Kindred Products (3.03%)  
Ingredion Incorporated  20,000 1,649,800 
Tyson Foods, Inc. Class A  50,000 4,037,000 

5,686,800 

Food Stores (0.93%)  
The Kroger Co.  80,000 1,736,800 

General Merchandise Stores (2.49%)  
Dollar General Corporation  20,600 2,784,296 
Dollar Tree, Inc. (a)  17,500 1,879,325 

4,663,621 

Health Services (1.29%)  
Laboratory Corporation of
  America Holdings (a)  14,000 2,420,600 

Holding and other Investment Offices (0.49%)  
Tanger Factory Outlet Centers, Inc.  56,250 911,812 

Home Furniture, Furnishings, and Equipment Stores (1.66%)
Williams-Sonoma, Inc.  48,000 3,120,000 

Industrial and Commercial Machinery and Computer Equipment 
(5.83%)  
Apple Inc.  20,500 4,057,360 
Cummins Inc.  16,000 2,741,440 
Eaton Corporation plc  18,000 1,499,040 
Lam Research Corporation  14,000 2,629,760 

10,927,600 

Insurance Carriers (1.78%)  
Prudential Financial, Inc.  33,000 3,333,000 

Leather and Leather Products (1.02%)  
Tapestry, Inc.  60,000 1,903,800 

Metal Mining (0.89%)  
Fresnillo plc 150,100 1,662,365
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SCHEDULE OF PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS 
Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 (Unaudited)

See notes to financial statements.

 
Common Stocks (continued) Shares Value Shares Value 

Miscellaneous Retail (1.31%)  
The Michaels Companies, Inc. (a)  50,000 $ 435,000
Walgreens Boots Alliance, Inc.  37,000 2,022,790

2,457,790

Motor Freight Transportation and Warehousing (1.02%)  
J.B. Hunt Transport Services, Inc.  21,000 1,919,610

Non-Depository Credit Institutions (4.35%)  
Credit Acceptance Corporation (a)  11,500 5,564,045
Discover Financial Services  33,350 2,587,627

8,151,672

Paper and Allied Products (1.42%)  
Packaging Corporation of America  28,000 2,668,960

Petroleum Refining and Related Industries (1.25%)  
Valvoline Inc. 120,000 2,343,600

Pipelines, Except Natural Gas (0.52%)  
Enbridge Inc.  27,108 978,057 

Railroad Transportation (1.17%)  
Kansas City Southern 18,000 2,192,760

Security and Commodity Brokers, Dealers, Exchanges,  
and Services (6.26%)  
Ameriprise Financial, Inc. 18,000 2,612,880
BlackRock, Inc. 4,700 2,205,710
Lazard Ltd. Class A  41,500 1,427,185
SEI Investments Company  45,000 2,524,500
T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.  27,000 2,962,170

11,732,445

Stone, Clay, Glass, and Concrete Products (1.23%)  
Apogee Enterprises, Inc.  53,000 2,302,320

Tobacco Products (3.11%)  
Altria Group, Inc.  40,000 1,894,000
British American Tobacco p.l.c. 50,000 1,743,500
Philip Morris International Inc.  28,000 2,198,840

 5,836,340 

Transportation by Air (5.30%)  
Alaska Air Group, Inc.  42,000 2,684,220
Allegiant Travel Company  19,700 2,826,950
Hawaiian Holdings, Inc.  80,000 2,194,400
Southwest Airlines Co.  44,000 2,234,320

9,939,890

Transportation Equipment (8.45%)  
Huntington Ingalls Industries, Inc.  4,700  $ 1,056,278 
LCI Industries  22,500 2,025,000
Lear Corporation  14,000 1,949,780
Magna International Inc.  53,000 2,634,100
Oshkosh Corporation  32,500 2,713,425
PACCAR Inc.  60,000 4,299,600
Thor Industries, Inc.  20,000 1,169,000

15,847,183 

Wholesale Trade - Durable Goods (1.94%)  
TE Connectivity Ltd. 38,000 3,639,640

Wholesale Trade - Nondurable Goods (1.90%)  
AmerisourceBergen Corporation 26,750 2,280,705
Cardinal Health, Inc. 27,000 1,271,700 

3,552,405 

Total common stocks (Cost $167,181,084)          190,996,519

Principal 

Corporate Bonds and Notes (0.22%) Amount Value

Electric Services (0.22%)  
Elwood Energy LLC, 8.159%,
  7/5/26  (Cost $385,867)  381,381 415,705

Reorganization Interests (0.00%)  Shares Value 

Penson Technologies LLC Units (a) (b)
  (Cost $ 0)  813,527 0

Master Limited Partnerships (1.40%)  Units Value 

Electric, Gas, and Sanitary Services (0.62%)  
Enterprise Products Partners L.P. Units  40,000 1,154,800 

Mining and Quarrying of Nonmetallic Minerals,  
Except Fuels (0.78%)  
Ciner Resources LP  75,268 1,459,447 

Total master limited partnerships (Cost $2,498,438)  2,614,247 
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SCHEDULE OF PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS
Financial Statements

June 30, 2019 (Unaudited)

 

Preferred Stocks (3.79%) Shares Value Shares Value 

Holding and other Investment Offices (3.59%)  
Ashford Hospitality Trust, Inc.,
  7.50 % Series H  15,000  $ 324,600 
CBL & Associates Properties,
  Inc., 7.375% Series D  145,806 1,166,448 
CBL & Associates Properties, Inc., 
  6.625% Series E  89,242 672,885 
Cedar Realty Trust, Inc., 
  6.50% Series C  15,000 324,000 
Colony Capital, Inc., 7.15% Series I  20,000 437,000 
Colony Capital, Inc., 7.125% Series H  20,000 429,800 
Hersha Hospitality Trust 6.50% Series D  12,000 286,920 
Hersha Hospitality Trust 6.50% Series E  12,000 288,840 
Kimco Realty Corporation, 5.125% 
  Series L  20,000 490,800 
Kimco Realty Corporation, 5.25%
  Series M  20,000 489,400 
Pennsylvania Real Estate
  Investment Trust, 6.875% Series D  35,000 710,500 
Public Storage Depositary Shares,
4.95% Series D  7,500 184,575 
Public Storage Depositary Shares,
  4.90% Series E  26,168 641,377 
Washington Prime Group Inc., 
  7.50% Series H  9,000 189,090 
Washington Prime Group Inc., 
  6.875% Series I  5,000 96,350

6,732,585 

 
Water Transportation (0.20%)  
Costamare Inc., 8.75% Series D    15,000  $ 376,500 

Total preferred stocks (Cost $8,236,514) 7,109,085 

Total investments (Cost $178,301,903) 
  (107.29%)         201,135,556
Liabilities in excess of cash and 
  other assets (-7.29%)            (13,671,173)

Net assets (100.00%) $ 187,464,383

See notes to financial statements.

(a) Non-income producing.
(b) Illiquid and/or restricted security that has been fair valued.
(c) The Fund’s total investment portfolio value of $201,135,556 has been pledged as collateral for borrowings under the Fund’s credit facility. As of June 30, 2019

there was $14,012,726 in outstanding borrowing.
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

See notes to financial statements.

Financial StatementsFinancial Statements

  
  June 30, 2019 

 
Assets 
Investments, at value (cost: $178,301,903)  $ 201,135,556
Cash  158 
Receivables:
  Dividends  426,528 
  Due from transfer agent  147,081 
  Interest  15,218
  Foreign withholding tax reclaims  21,272
Prepaid expenses and other assets  76,383

    Total assets  201,822,196 

Liabilities  
Credit facility borrowing  14,012,726 
Payables:
  Accrued expenses  160,030 
  Investment management  156,088 
  Administrative services  20,955
  Trustees  8,014 

   Total liabilities  14,357,813 

Net Assets  $ 187,464,383
   

Net Asset Value Per Share  
(applicable to 12,424,467 shares issued and outstanding) $ 15.09

Net Assets Consist of  
  Paid in capital  $ 163,461,692
  Distributable earnings  24,002,691 

$ 187,464,383



STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Financial Statements
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Financial Statements

  Six Months Ended 
  June 30, 2019 

Investment Income
 $ 2,921,304 

Interest  15,373

Total investment income  2,936,677 

Expenses  
Investment management  982,778 
Interest and fees on credit facility  541,856 
Administrative services  115,915 
Trustees  53,587
Legal  52,050
Bookkeeping and pricing  46,860
Shareholder communications  34,820
Insurance  26,064
Auditing  22,525
Custodian  18,060
Exchange listing and registration  16,290
Other  7,931 
Transfer agent  7,540 

Total expenses  1,926,276 

Net investment income  1,010,401 

Realized and Unrealized Gain (Loss)  
Net realized gain (loss) on
 Investments  1,614,391 
 Foreign currencies  (483)

Unrealized appreciation on investments  30,525,872

Net realized and unrealized gain  32,139,780

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations  $ 33,150,181 

See notes to financial statements.

(Unaudited)
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See notes to financial statements.
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Financial Statements

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Financial Statements

                     Six Months Ended                 Year Ended 
                     June 30, 2019              December 31, 2018 

Operations 
Net investment income $ 1,010,401  $ 2,436,296 
Net realized gain on investments 1,613,908 5,045,502 
Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments 30,525,872 (43,151,928)

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations 33,150,181 (35,670,130)

Distributions to Shareholders  
Distributable earnings  (2,624,309) (7,121,597)
Return of capital (2,335,435) (1,523,838)

Total distributions (4,959,744) (8,645,435)

Capital Share Transactions  
Reinvestment of distributions to shareholders 421,702 428,441 
Proceeds from shares issued in rights offering -   23,497,606
Offering costs of share offering charged to paid in capital -  (159,595)

Increase in net assets from capital share transactions 421,702 23,766,452 

Total change in net assets 28,612,139 (20,549,113)

Net Assets  
Beginning of period 158,852,244  179,401,357 

End of period  $ 187,464,383  $158,852,244

(Unaudited)



Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

  Six Months Ended 
  June 30, 2019 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
 $ 33,150,181 

Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets resulting from operations
  to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
    Unrealized appreciation on investments (30,525,872)
    Net realized gain on sales of investments (1,613,908)
    Purchase of long term investments (32,501,766)
    Proceeds from sales of long term investments 48,725,369 
    Net purchases of short term investments (483)
    Amortization of premium on investments 237 
    Increase in dividends receivable (45,410)
    Decrease in due from transfer agent 136,306
    Decrease in interest receivable 2,376 
    Increase in foreign withholding tax reclaims (15,506)
    Increase in prepaid expenses and other assets (10,066)
    Decrease in accrued expenses (56,150)
    Decrease in investment management fee payable (231)
    Increase in administrative services payable 701 
    Increase in trustee expenses payable 4,301 

Net cash provided by operating activities 17,250,079 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities  
Credit facility repayment, net (12,715,474)
Cash distributions paid (4,538,042)

Net cash used in financing activities (17,253,516)

Net change in cash (3,437)

Cash  
Beginning of period 3,595 

End of period  $ 158 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:  
Non-cash financing activities not included herein consisted of:
  Cash paid for interest on credit facility  $ 529,852
  Reinvestment of dividend distributions  $ 421,702
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1.  ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Divi-
dend and Income Fund (the “Fund”), a Delaware statutory trust reg-gg
istered under the Company Act, is a diversified, closed end
management investment company whose shares are listed on the
New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol DNI. The Fund’s
primary investment objective is to seek high current income. Capital
appreciation is a secondary objective. The Fund retains Bexil Advis-
ers LLC as its investment manager (the “Investment Manager”).  

As an investment company, the Fund follows the accounting and re-
porting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Board Ac-
counting Standard Codification Topic 946 “Financial Services –
Investment Companies.” The financial statements have been pre-
pared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (“GAAP”), which require manage-
ment to make certain estimates and assumptions at the date of
the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those es-
timates. Subsequent events, if any, through the date that the fi-
nancial statements were issued have been evaluated in the
preparation of the financial statements. The following summarizes
the significant accounting policies of the Fund:

Valuation of Investments – Portfolio securities are valued by var-
ious methods depending on the primary market or exchange on
which they trade. Most equity securities for which the primary mar-rr
ket is in the United States are usually valued at the official clos-
ing price, last sale price or, if no sale has occurred, at the closing
bid price. Most equity securities for which the primary market is
outside the United States are usually valued using the official clos-
ing price or the last sale price in the principal market in which
they are traded. If the last sale price on the local exchange is un-
available, the last evaluated quote or closing bid price normally is
used. In the event of an unexpected closing of the primary mar-rr
ket or exchange, a security may continue to trade on one or more
other markets, and the price as reflected on those other trading
venues may be more reflective of the security’s value than an ear-rr
lier price from the primary market or exchange. Accordingly, the
Fund may seek to use these additional sources of pricing data or
information when prices from the primary market or exchange are
unavailable, or are earlier and less representative of current mar-rr
ket value. Certain debt securities may be priced through pricing
services that may utilize a matrix pricing system which takes into
consideration factors such as yields, prices, maturities, call fea-
tures, and ratings on comparable securities or according to
prices quoted by a securities dealer that offers pricing services.
Open end investment companies are valued at their net asset
value. Foreign securities markets may be open on days when the
U.S. markets are closed. For this reason, the value of any foreign

securities owned by the Fund could change on a day when share-
holders cannot buy or sell shares of the Fund. Securities for which
market quotations are not readily available or reliable and other
assets may be valued as determined in good faith by the Invest-
ment Manager under the direction of or pursuant to procedures
approved by the Fund’s Board of Trustees (the “Board”), called
“fair value pricing.” Due to the inherent uncertainty of valuation,
fair value pricing values may differ from the values that would
have been used had a readily available and reliable market quo-
tation for the securities existed. These differences in valuation
could be material. A security’s valuation may differ depending on
the method used for determining value. The use of fair value pric-
ing by the Fund may cause the net asset value of its shares to dif-ff
fer from the net asset value that would be calculated using market
prices. A fair value price is an estimate and there is no assurance
that such price will be at or close to the price at which a security
is next quoted or traded.

Cash – Cash may include deposits allocated among banks in-
sured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation in amounts
up to the insurance coverage maximum amount of $250,000.
Cash may also include uninvested cash balances held by the
Fund’s custodian.

Foreign Currency Translation – Securities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at prevailing exchange
rates. Realized gain or loss on sales of such investments in local
currency terms is reported separately from gain or loss attributa-
ble to a change in foreign exchange rates for those investments.

Investments in Other Investment Companies – The Fund may in-
vest in shares of other investment companies such as closed end
funds, exchange traded funds, and mutual funds (each, an “Ac-
quired Fund”) in accordance with the Company Act and related
rules. Shareholders in the Fund bear the pro rata portion of the
fees and expenses of an Acquired Fund in addition to the Fund’s
expenses. Expenses incurred by the Fund that are disclosed in
the Statement of Operations do not include fees and expenses
incurred by an Acquired Fund. The fees and expenses of an Ac-
quired Fund are reflected in such Acquired Fund’s total return.

Option Transactions – The Fund may write (i.e., sell) covered call
options on securities or on indexes to attempt to enhance re-
turns through price changes of the option, increase income,
hedge to reduce overall portfolio risk, and hedge to reduce indi-
vidual security risk. When the Fund writes an option, an amount
equal to the premium received by the Fund is recorded as a lia-
bility and is subsequently adjusted to the current fair value of
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the option written. Premiums received from writing options that
expire unexercised are treated by the Fund on the expiration date
as realized gains from investments. The difference between the
premium and the amount paid on effecting a closing purchase
transaction, including brokerage commissions, is also treated as
a realized gain or, if the premium is less than the amount paid for
the closing purchase transaction, as a realized loss. If a call op-
tion is exercised, the premium is added to the proceeds from the
sale of the underlying security or currency in determining whether
the Fund has realized a gain or loss. If a put option is exercised,
the premium reduces the cost basis of the securities purchased
by the Fund. The Fund, as the writer of an option, bears the mar-
ket risk of an unfavorable change in the price of the option. Writ-
ing option contracts results in off-balance sheet risk as the Fund’s
ultimate obligation to satisfy terms of the contract may exceed
the amount recognized in the statement of assets and liabilities.

Investments in Real Estate Investment Trusts (“REITs”) – Dividend
income is recorded based on the income included in distributions
received from the REIT investments using published REIT reclas-
sifications, including some management estimates when actual
amounts are not available. Distributions received in excess of this
estimated amount are recorded as a reduction of the cost of in-
vestments or reclassified to capital gains. The actual amounts of
income, return of capital, and capital gains are only determined
by each REIT after its fiscal year end, and may differ from the es-
timated amounts.

Short Sales – The Fund may sell a security short it does not own in
anticipation of a decline in the market value of the security. When
the Fund sells a security short, it must borrow the security sold short
and deliver it to the broker/dealer through which it made the short
sale. The Fund is liable for any dividends or interest paid on secu-
rities sold short. A gain, limited to the price at which the Fund sold
the security short, or a loss, unlimited in size, normally is recog-gg
nized upon the termination of the short sale. Securities sold short
result in off balance sheet risk as the Fund’s ultimate obligation to
satisfy the terms of a sale of securities sold short may exceed the
amount recognized in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Investment Transactions – Investment transactions are accounted
for on the trade date (the date the order to buy or sell is executed).
Realized gains or losses are determined by specifically identifying
the cost basis of the investment sold.

Investment Income – Dividend income is recorded on the ex-
dividend date or in the case of certain foreign securities, as soon

as practicable after the Fund is notified. Interest income is
recorded on the accrual basis. Amortization of premium and ac-
cretion of discount on corporate bonds and notes are included in
interest income. Taxes withheld on foreign dividends have been
provided for in accordance with the Fund’s understanding of the
applicable country’s tax rules and rates.

Expenses – Expenses deemed to have been incurred solely by the
Fund are normally charged to the Fund in the entirety. Expenses
deemed to have been incurred jointly by the Fund and one or more
of the other investment companies for which the Investment Man-
ager or its affiliates serve as investment manager, or other re-
lated entities, are generally allocated based on the most
practicable method deemed equitable at the time the expense is
incurred, including, without limitation, on the basis of relative as-
sets under management.

Distributions to Shareholders – Distributions to shareholders are
determined in accordance with the Fund’s distribution policies and
income tax regulations and are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

Income Taxes – No provision has been made for U.S. income taxes
because the Fund’s current intention is to continue to qualify as a
regulated investment company under the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (the “IRC”), and to distribute to its share-
holders substantially all of its taxable income and net realized gains.
Foreign securities held by the Fund may be subject to foreign taxa-
tion. Foreign taxes, if any, are recorded based on the tax regula-
tions and rates that exist in the foreign markets in which the Fund
invests. The Fund recognizes the tax benefits of uncertain tax po-
sitions only where the position is “more likely than not” to be sus-
tained assuming examination by tax authorities. The Fund has
reviewed its tax positions and has concluded that no liability for un-
recognized tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax
positions taken on federal, state, and local income tax returns for
open tax years (2016-2018) or expected to be taken in the Fund’s
2019 tax returns.

The Fund may be subject to foreign taxation related to income
received, capital gains on the sale of securities, and certain for-rr
eign currency transactions in the foreign jurisdictions in which it
invests. Foreign taxes, if any, are recorded based on the tax reg-
ulations and rates that exist in the foreign markets in which the
Fund invests. When a capital gain tax is determined to apply, the
Fund records an estimated deferred tax liability in an amount
that would be payable if the securities were disposed of on the
valuation date.
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2. FEES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
has retained the Investment Manager pursuant to an investment
management agreement. Under the terms of the investment man-
agement agreement, the Investment Manager receives a fee
payable monthly for investment advisory services at an annual
rate of 0.95% of the Fund’s Managed Assets. “Managed Assets”
means the average weekly value of the Fund’s total assets minus
the sum of the Fund’s liabilities, which liabilities exclude debt re-
lating to leverage, short term debt, and the aggregate liquidation
preference of any outstanding preferred stock.

Pursuant to the investment management agreement, the Fund re-
imburses the Investment Manager for providing at cost certain ad-
ministrative services comprised of compliance and accounting
services. For the six months ended June 30, 2019, the Fund’s re-
imbursements of such costs were $115,915, of which $65,625
and $50,290 was for compliance and accounting services, re-
spectively.  Certain officers and trustees of the Fund are officers
and managers of the Investment Manager. As of June 30, 2019,
Bexil Securities LLC (“Bexil Securities”), an affiliate of the Invest-
ment Manager, and the Investment Manager, collectively, owned
approximately 9.1% of the Fund’s outstanding shares, pursuant to
the Fund’s governing documents that permit ownership of more
than 4.99% of the Fund’s outstanding shares only with the prior ap-
proval of the Fund’s Board. Bexil Securities and the Investment
Manager, collectively, acquired 27,615 and 23,243 shares of the
Fund during the six months ended June 30, 2019 and year ended
December 31, 2018, respectively, through the Fund’s Dividend
Reinvestment Plan and Bexil Securities acquired 190,000 shares
of the Fund through participation in the Fund’s rights offering dur-rr
ing the year ended December 31, 2018.

Each Fund trustee who is not an employee of the Investment Man-
ager or its affiliates is compensated by the Fund. These trustees re-
ceive fees for service as a trustee from the Fund and, to the extent
applicable, the other investment companies for which the Invest-
ment Manager or its affiliates serve as investment manager. In ad-
dition, trustee out-of-pocket expenses are allocated to each fund
for which the Investment Manager or its affiliates serve as invest-
ment manager based on the most practicable method deemed eq-
uitable at the time the expense is incurred, including, without
limitation, on the basis of relative assets under management. Ex-
penses deemed to have been incurred solely by the Fund are nor-rr
mally charged to the Fund in the entirety.
 

3. DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS AND DISTRIBUTABLE 
EARNINGS The tax character of distributions paid by the Fund for
the six months ended June 30, 2019 and year ended December
31, 2018 are comprised of the following:

The tax character of the distributions paid for the six months ended
June 30, 2019 are estimates based on information available at
this time and may be subject to change. The classification of these
distributions for federal income tax purposes is expected to be de-
termined after the Fund’s fiscal year ending December 31, 2019
and the exact amount is not estimable as of June 30, 2019.

As of December 31, 2018, the components of distributable earn-
ings on a tax basis were as follows: 

The difference between book and tax unrealized depreciation is
primarily related to partnership income.

4.  VALUE MEASUREMENTS  GAAP establishes a hierarchy that pri-
oritizes inputs to valuation methods. The three levels of inputs are:

• Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identi-
cal assets or liabilities including securities actively traded on a
securities exchange.

• Level 2 -  observable inputs other than quoted prices included
in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability which may
include quoted prices for similar instruments, interest rates, pre-
payment speeds, credit risk, yield curves, default rates, and sim-
ilar data.

• Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability including
the Fund’s own assumptions about the assumptions a market
participant would use in valuing the asset or liability.

Tax characteristics  
of distributions:   2019                  2018

Ordinary income $    1,010,401  $      1,374,632

Capital gains 1,613,908   5,746,965

Return of capital 2,335,435 1,523,838

Total distribution $     4,959,744 $     8,645,435

Unrealized depreciation $     (6,523,181)
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The availability of observable inputs can vary from security to se-
curity and is affected by a wide variety of factors including, for ex-
ample, the type of security, whether the security is new and not
yet established in the marketplace, the liquidity of markets, and
other characteristics particular to the security. To the extent that
valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable
or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value re-
quires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exer-rr
cised in determining fair value is greatest for investments
categorized in level 3. The inputs used to measure fair value may
fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases,
the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value
measurement falls in its entirety is determined based on the low-
est level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. The inputs or methodology used for valuing investments are
not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in
those securities.

The following is a description of the valuation techniques applied
to the Fund’s major categories of assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a recurring basis:

Equity securities (common and preferred stock) – Most publicly
traded equity securities are valued normally at the most recent
official closing price, last sale price, evaluated quote, or closing
bid price. To the extent these securities are actively traded and
valuation adjustments are not applied, they may be categorized

in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Equities on inactive markets
or valued by reference to similar instruments may be categorized
in level 2.

Corporate bonds and notes – The fair value of corporate bonds
and notes is normally estimated using various techniques which
may consider, among other things, recently executed transactions
in securities of the issuer or comparable issuers, market price
quotations (where observable), bond spreads, and fundamental
data relating to the issuer. Although many corporate bonds and
notes may be categorized in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, in
instances where lower relative weight is placed on transaction
prices, quotations, or similar observable inputs, they may be cat-
egorized in level 3.

Restricted and/or illiquid securities – Restricted and/or illiquid se-
curities for which quotations are not readily available or reliable
may be valued with fair value pricing as determined in good faith
by the Investment Manager under the direction of or pursuant to
procedures approved by the Fund’s Board. Restricted securities is-
sued by publicly traded companies are generally valued at a dis-
count to similar publicly traded securities. Restricted or illiquid
securities issued by nonpublic entities may be valued by reference
to comparable public entities or fundamental data relating to the
issuer or both or similar inputs. Depending on the relative signifi-
cance of valuation inputs, these instruments may be categorized
in either level 2 or level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

ASSETS Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

  Investments, at value

Common stocks $  190,996,519 $                - $           - $  190,996,519

Corporate bonds and notes - 415,705 -    415,705

Reorganization interests   - - 0   0

Master limited partnerships 2,614,247 - - 2,614,247

Preferred stocks 7,109,085 - - 7,109,085

Total investments, at value $ 200,719,851 $ 415,705 $          0 $  201,135,556

There were no securities transferred from level 1 to level 2 between December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019.

The following is a summary of the inputs used as of June 30, 2019 in valuing the Fund’s assets. Refer to the Schedule of Portfolio In-
vestments for detailed information on specific investments.



DIVIDEND AND INCOME FUND15        Semi-Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial Statements

(Unaudited)NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial Statements

The Investment Manager, under the direction of or pursuant to procedures approved by the Fund’s Board, considers various valuation tech-
niques and inputs for valuing assets categorized within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. These include, but are not limited to: the type of
the security; the size of the asset; the initial cost of the security; the existence of any contractual restrictions on the security’s disposition;
prices of and extent of public trading in similar securities of the issuer or of comparable companies; quotations or evaluated prices from bro-
ker-dealers and/or pricing services; information obtained from the issuer or analysts; an analysis of the company’s or issuer’s financial
statements; an evaluation of the forces that influence the issuer and the market in which the asset is purchased and sold; multiples of
earnings, cash flow, enterprise value, and similar measures; and the discount rate for lack of marketability. Significant changes in any of thosegg
techniques or inputs in isolation may result in a significantly lower or higher fair value measurement. The pricing of all fair value assets isr
regularly reported to the Fund’s Board.

Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range

Reorganization Interests 
 

$         0 Cost; last known market value for
predecessor securities; estimated
recovery on liquidation

Discount rate for lack of  
marketability

  100%

The following table presents additional information about valuation techniques and inputs used for assets that are measured at fair value
and categorized as level 3 as of June 30, 2019:

5. INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS Purchases and proceeds from
sales or maturities of investment securities, excluding short term
investments, were $32,501,766 and $48,725,369, respectively,
for the six months ended June 30, 2019.  As of June 30, 2019, for
federal income tax purposes, the aggregate cost of securities was
$178,301,903 and net unrealized appreciation was $22,833,653,
comprised of gross unrealized appreciation of $32,898,383 and
gross unrealized depreciation of $10,064,730. The aggregate cost
of securities for tax purposes will depend upon the fund’s invest-
ment experience during the entirety of its fiscal year and may be
subject to changes based on tax regulations.
 
6. ILLIQUID AND RESTRICTED SECURITIES The Fund owns securi-
ties which have a limited trading market and/or certain restrictions

on trading and, therefore, may be illiquid and/or restricted. Such
securities have been valued using fair value pricing. Due to the in-
herent uncertainty of valuation, fair value pricing values may differ
from the values that would have been used had a readily available
and reliable market quotation for the securities existed. These dif-ff
ferences in valuation could be material. Illiquid and/or restricted
securities owned as of June 30, 2019 were as follows:

   Acquisition  
   Date Cost Value

Penson Technologies LLC    4/09/14    $       0      $      0

Percent of net assets            0%           0%

The following is a reconciliation of level 3 assets including securities valued at zero:

                           Reorganization 
                            Interests

Balance at December 31, 2018 $            0

Transfers into (out of) level 3 -

Change in unrealized depreciation -

Balance at June 30, 2019 $          0

Net change in unrealized appreciation attributable to assets still held as level 3 at June 30, 2019 $            -

Unrealized gains (losses) are included in the related amounts on investments in the Statement of Operations.
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7.  CREDIT FACILITY -
mented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”) with The Huntington National Bank (“HNB”), the Fund’s custodian,
under which HNB may make loans to the Fund in such amounts as the Fund may from time to time request. The maximum loan amount
under the Credit Agreement is the lesser of: (i) $55,000,000 or (ii) 30% of the Fund’s daily market value, which market value may be de-
creased by the exclusion of certain Fund assets or asset classes, as HNB may decide from time to time in its sole discretion. The Fund
pledges its securities and other assets as collateral to secure its obligations under the Credit Agreement and retains the risks and rewardskk
of the ownership of such securities and other assets pledged.

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear an interest rate per annum to be applied to the principal balance outstanding, from time to
time, equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.20%. An unused fee is charged equal to 0.125% per annum of the daily
excess of the maximum loan amount over the outstanding principal balance of the loan. The Fund was charged an origination fee of
$68,750 upon the annual renewal of the Credit Agreement and such cost is amortized ratably through May 30, 2020, the maturity date
of the Credit Agreement. 

The outstanding loan balance under the Credit Agreement was $14,012,726 as of June 30, 2019. The weighted average interest rate
and average daily amount outstanding under the Credit Agreement in the six months ended June 30, 2019 were 3.74% and $26,774,246,
respectively. The maximum amount outstanding during the six months ended June 30, 2019 was $44,196,200.
 
8.  SHARE TRANSACTIONS The Fund is authorized to issue an unlimited amount of $0.01 par value shares of beneficial interest. As of
June 30, 2019, there were 12,424,467 shares outstanding. Share transactions for the following periods were:

On January 29, 2018, the Fund announced the completion and results of its non-transferable rights offering (the “Offer”) to shareholders of
record on December 26, 2017. The Offer commenced on December 27, 2017 and expired on January 26, 2018 (the “Expiration Date”).  The
subscription price per share was $14.20, determined based upon a formula equal to 95% of the market price or 79% of the net asset value
(“NAV”) per share, whichever is greater, on the Expiration Date.  Market price per share was determined based on the average of the last ref -
ported sales prices of a share on the New York Stock Exchange for the five trading days preceding the Expiration Date (not including the Ex-
piration Date).  For this purpose, the market price per share, using the formula described above, was $14.07 and the NAV per share on the
Expiration Date was $17.98. The Offer resulted in total gross proceeds of $23,497,606, prior to the deduction of offering costs incurred ofs
$159,595, and the issuance of 1,654,761 shares.  The NAV per share of the Fund was reduced by approximately $0.52 per share as a re-
sult of the issuance of shares below NAV.

9.  MARKET AND CREDIT RISKS  The Fund may invest in below investment grade  securities (commonly referred to as “junk” bonds).
Below investment grade securities are regarded as being predominantly speculative as to the issuer's ability to make payments of prin-
cipal and interest.  The risks associated with acquiring the securities of such issuers generally are greater than is the case with higher rated
securities.  For example, during an economic downturn or a sustained period of rising interest rates, issuers of below investment grade
securities may be more likely to experience financial stress, especially if such issuers are highly leveraged.  During periods of economic
downturn, such issuers may not have sufficient revenues to meet their interest payment obligations.  The issuer's ability to service its debt
obligations also may be adversely affected by specific issuer developments, the issuer's inability to meet specific projected business fore-
casts, or the unavailability of additional financing.  Therefore, there can be no assurance that in the future there will not exist a higher deee -
fault rate relative to the rates currently existing in the market for below investment grade securities.  The risk of loss due to default by the

 
 
Shares issued in:

          Six Months Ended 
          June 30, 2019 

                Shares                      Amount

Year Ended 
December 31, 2018 

Shares                             Amount

Reinvestment of distributions                37,344                $   421,702          42,240               $         428,441

Rights offering                         -                                -         1,654,761                    23,497,606

               37,344                $   421,702        1,697,001               $     23,$ 926,047
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issuer is significantly greater for the holders of below investment
grade securities because such securities may be unsecured and
may be subordinate to other creditors of the issuer. The relative
illiquidity of some of these securities may adversely affect the abil-
ity of the Fund to dispose of such securities in a timely manner
and at a fair price at times when it might be necessary or advan-
tageous for the Fund to liquidate portfolio securities.
 
10.  FOREIGN SECURITIES RISK  Investments in the securities of
foreign issuers involve special risks which include changes in for-rr
eign exchange rates and the possibility of future adverse political,
tax, and economic developments which could adversely affect the
value of such securities.  Moreover, securities of foreign issuers
and securities traded in foreign markets may be less liquid and
their prices more volatile than those of U.S. issuers and markets.
In addition, in certain foreign countries, there is the possibility of
expropriation or confiscatory taxation, political, or social instability,
or diplomatic developments that could affect U.S. investments in
the securities of issuers domiciled in those countries.

11.  LEVERAGE RISK  The Fund from time to time may borrow under
its credit facility to increase the assets in its investment portfolio
over its net assets, a practice called leverage.  Leverage borrowing
creates an opportunity for increased return but, at the same time,
involves special risk considerations.  Leverage increases the like-
lihood of greater volatility of NAV and market price of the Fund’s
shares.  If the return that the Fund earns on the additional securi-
ties purchased fails to cover the interest and fees incurred on the
monies borrowed, the NAV of the Fund (and the return of the Fund)
would be lower than if borrowing had not been incurred.  In addi-
tion, when the Fund borrows at a variable interest rate, there is a
risk that fluctuations in the interest rate may adversely affect the
return to the Fund’s shareholders.  Interest payments and fees in-
curred in connection with such borrowings will reduce the amount
of net income available for distribution to shareholders.  There is
no assurance that a borrowing strategy will be successful during
any period in which it is employed. Borrowing on a secured basis
results in certain additional risks.  Should securities that are
pledged as collateral to secure its obligations under the credit fa-
cility decline in value, the Fund may be required to pledge addi-
tional assets in the form of cash or securities to the lender to avoid
liquidation of the pledged assets.  In the event of a steep drop in
the value of pledged securities, it might not be possible to liqui-
date assets quickly enough and this could result in mandatory liq-
uidation of the pledged assets in a declining market at relatively
low prices.  Furthermore, the Investment Manager’s ability to sell

the pledged securities is limited by the terms of the credit facility,
which may reduce the Fund’s investment flexibility over the
pledged securities.  Because the fee paid to the Investment Man-
ager is calculated on the basis of the average weekly value of the
Fund’s total assets minus the sum of the Fund’s liabilities, which
liabilities exclude debt relating to leverage, short term debt and
the aggregate liquidation preference of any outstanding preferred
stock, the dollar amount of the management fee paid by the Fund
to the Investment Manager will be higher (and the Investment Man-
ager will benefit to that extent) when leverage is utilized. 
 
12.  CYBERSECURITY RISK With the increased use of technolo-
gies such as the Internet to conduct business, the Fund is sus-
ceptible to operational, information security, and related risks.
Cyber incidents affecting the Fund or its service providers may
cause disruptions and impact business operations, potentially
resulting in financial losses, interference with the Fund’s ability
to calculate its NAV, impediments to trading, the inability of
shareholders to transact business, violations of applicable pri-
vacy and other laws, regulatory fines, penalties, reputational
damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs, or addi-
tional related costs.
 
13.  CONTINGENCIES  The Fund indemnifies its officers and
trustees from certain liabilities that might arise from their per-rr
formance of their duties for the Fund. Additionally, in the normal
course of business, the Fund enters into contracts that contain a
variety of representations and warranties and which may provide
general indemnifications. The Fund’s maximum exposure under
these arrangements is unknown as it involves future claims that
may be made against the Fund under circumstances that have
not occurred.

14.  SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM In accordance with Section
23(c) of the Company Act, the Fund may from time to time repur-rr
chase its shares in the open market at the discretion of and upon
such terms as determined by the Board. The Fund did not repur-rr
chase any of its shares during the six months ended June 30,
2019 and the year ended December 31, 2018, respectively.

15.  OTHER INFORMATION  The Fund may at times raise cash for
investment by issuing shares through one or more offerings, in-
cluding rights offerings.  Proceeds from any such offerings will be
invested in accordance with the investment objectives and poli-
cies of the Fund.
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(1)  The per share amounts were calculated using the average number of shares outstanding during the period.
(2) Total return on a market value basis is calculated assuming a purchase of shares on the opening of the first day and a sale on the closing of the last day of each period reported. Dividends and distributions, 

if any, are assumed for purposes of this calculation to be reinvested at prices obtained under the Fund’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Generally, total return on a net asset value basis will be higher than totalt
return on a market value basis in periods where there is an increase in the discount or a decrease in the premium of the market value to the net asset value from the beginning to the end of such periods.  t
Conversely, total return on a net asset value basis will be lower than total return on a market value basis in periods where there is a decrease in the discount or an increase in the premium of the market value
to the net asset value from the beginning to the end of such periods. Total return calculated for a period of less than one year is not annualized. The calculation does not reflect brokerage commissions, if any.

(3)  Expenses and income ratios do not include expenses incurred by the Acquired Funds in which the Fund invests.
(4)  “Total expenses” are the expenses of the Fund as presented in the Statement of Operations before fee waivers and expense reductions.
(5) The ratio of net expenses excluding interest expense and fees incurred from the use of leverage to average net assets was 1.52%† for the six months ended June 30, 2019 and 1.34%, 1.44%, 1.46%, 1.51%, and 1.47% for

the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively.
(6) “Net expenses” are the expenses of the Fund presented in the Statement of Operations after expense reductions. 
(7)  Represents the value of total assets less liabilities not represented by senior securities representing indebtedness divided by the total number of senior indebtedness units, where one unit equals $1,000 ofy

senior indebtedness. For purposes of this calculation, the credit facility is considered a senior security representing indebtedness.
    †  Annualized.

 

    Per Share Operating Performance 
   Net asset value, beginning of period $12.82 $16.78 $14.18 $13.11 $16.66 $17.20   

   Income from investment operations: (1)

     Net investment income 0.16 0.20 0.16 0.25 0.31 0.34
     Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments 2.53 (2.93) 3.05 1.84 (1.68) 0.76
       Total income (loss) from investment operations 2.69 (2.73) 3.21 2.09 (1.37) 1.10

   Less distributions:
     Net investment income (0.08) (0.11) (0.39) (0.23) (0.26) (1.63)
     Capital gains (0.13) (0.47) (0.09) - - -
     Return of capital (0.19) (0.12) (0.12) (0.77) (1.37) -
       Total distributions (0.40) (0.70) (0.60) (1.00) (1.63) (1.63)

   Fund share transactions
     Effect of reinvestment of distributions (0.02) (0.01) (0.01) (0.02) (0.02) (0.01)
     Decrease in net asset value from rights offering - (0.52) - - (0.53) -
      Total Fund share transactions (0.02) (0.53) (0.01) (0.02) (0.55) (0.01)

   Net asset value, end of period $15.09 $12.82 $16.78 $14.18 $13.11 $16.66

   Market value, end of period $11.53 $9.53 $13.43 $11.85 $11.01 $15.12

   Total Return (2) 
     Based on net asset value 21.90% (18.75)% 24.09% 18.13% (10.65)% 7.28%
     Based on market price 25.30% (24.54)% 18.84% 17.55% (17.32)% 10.83%

   Ratios/Supplemental Data (3) 
   Net assets, end of period (000s omitted) $187,464 $158,852 $179,401 $151,005 $138,417 $144,280      
   Ratios to average net assets of:
     Total expenses (4) (5) 2.12%† 1.63% 1.77% 1.62% 1.65% 1.55%
     Net expenses (6) 2.12%† 1.63% 1.77% 1.62% 1.65% 1.55%
     Net investment income 1.11%† 1.28% 1.04% 1.85% 2.02% 1.94%

   Portfolio turnover rate 16% 59% 40% 69% 35% 52%
   Leverage analysis, end of period:
     Outstanding loan balance (000s omitted) $  14,013 $  26,728 $ 35,000 $27,780 $  8,066 $17,284  
     Asset coverage per $1,000 (7) $  14,378 $ 6,943 $  6,126 $ 6,436 $ 18,161 $  9,347
   Average commission rate paid $  0.0174 $ 0.0215 $  0.0174 $0.0143 $0.0185 $ 0.0131

                        Year Ended December 31, 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

See notes to financial statements.

Six Months 
Ended 

June 30, 2019
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Investment Objectives and Policies 
The Fund’s primary investment objective is to seek high current income.
Capital appreciation is a secondary objective. The investment objec-
tives of the Fund are fundamental policies that may not be changed
without a vote of a majority of the Fund’s outstanding voting secur-
ities. The Fund is also subject to certain investment policies and 
restrictions that are fundamental and cannot be changed without 
such vote. A majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund 
is defined under the Company Act as the lesser of: (i) 67% or more of
the Fund’s shares present at a meeting if more than 50% of the out-
standing shares of the Fund are present or represented by proxy; or  
(ii) more than 50% of the outstanding shares of the Fund. All other 
investment strategies, policies, and restrictions described are not  
fundamental and may be changed by the Board without shareholder ap-
proval except as required by law.

Limitations on Ownership 
The Fund’s governing documents contain provisions designed to 
prevent an ownership change from taking place, which could limit 
the Fund’s ability to use capital loss carryovers, by limiting the ability
of persons to own more than 4.99% of the Fund’s outstanding shares
without the Board’s prior approval. These provisions may have an anti-
takeover effect on the Fund as do certain other provisions the Fund
currently takes advantage of under Delaware law.

Additional Offerings 
Previously, the Fund has issued additional shares of beneficial in-
terest through rights offerings.  In the future, subject to market con-
ditions, the Fund may raise additional equity capital from time to
time in varying amounts and utilizing various offering methods. While
raising additional equity capital by selling new shares may allow the
Fund to pursue additional investment opportunities without the need
to sell existing portfolio investments, it also entails risks — including
that the issuance of additional shares of beneficial interest may re-
duce the premium or increase the discount at which the Fund’s
shares trade to net asset value in the secondary market. 

Future offerings, if any, will be described in a registration statement
which contains detailed information regarding the offering and should
be reviewed carefully before investing. This report is not an offer to
sell Fund shares and is not a solicitation of an offer to buy Fund
shares in any jurisdiction where the offers or sales are not permitted.

Proxy Voting 
The Fund’s Proxy Voting Guidelines, which describe the policies and
procedures the Fund uses to determine how to vote proxies relating to
portfolio securities, as well as its proxy voting record for the most re-
cent 12 months ended June 30, are available without charge by call-
ing the Fund collect at 1-212-785-0900, on the SEC’s website at
www.sec.gov, and on the Fund’s website at www.DividendandIncome-
Fund.com.

Quarterly Schedule of Portfolio Holdings 
The Fund files its complete schedule of portfolio holdings with the SEC
for the first and third quarters of each fiscal year on Form N-Q. The
Fund’s Forms N-Q are available on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov
and a link thereto can be found on the Fund’s website at www.Divi-
dendandIncomeFund.com.

Governing Documents
Certain provisions in the Fund’s governing documents could have the
effect of, among other things,  depriving the owners of shares in the
Fund of opportunities to sell their shares at a premium over prevail-
ing market prices by discouraging a third party from seeking to ob-
tain control of the Fund in a tender offer or similar transaction or
bringing litigation against the Fund and/or any trustee, officer, em-
ployee or affiliate thereof. The overall effect of these provisions is to,
among other things, render more difficult the accomplishment of a
merger or the assumption of control by a principal shareholder.  For
more information, please refer to the Fund’s governing documents,
which are on file with the SEC and available on the Fund’s website
www.DividendandIncomeFund.com.

POLICIES AND UPDATES 
Additional Information

(Unaudited)

The additional information below and on the following pages is supplemental and not part of the financial statements of the Fund. 
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2019 Quarterly Distribution Dates 

Declaration Record Payment 
March 1 March 15 March 29

June 3 June 17 June 28

September 3 September 17 September 30

December 2 December 16 December 30

HISTORICAL DISTRIBUTION SUMMARY*

PERIOD Investment Income Return of Capital Capital Gains Total

Six Months Ended June 30, 2019† $ 0.08 $  0.19 $ 0.13 $ 0.40
2018 $ 0.11 $  0.12 $ 0.47 $ 0.70
2017 $ 0.39 $ 0.12 $ 0.09 $ 0.60
2016 $ 0.23 $ 0.77 $       - $ 1.00
2015 $ 0.26 $ 1.37 $       - $ 1.63
2014** $ 1.63 $       - $       - $ 1.63
2013** $ 1.16 $ 0.47 $       - $ 1.63
2012 $ 0.56 $ 1.07 $       - $ 1.63
2011 $ 1.00 $ 0.76 $       - $ 1.76
2010 $ 1.40  $ 0.24  $       - $ 1.64 
2009 $ 1.56  $ 0.08 $       - $ 1.64
2008 $ 2.36  $ 1.08  $       - $ 3.44 
2007 $ 3.36  $ 0.20 $       - $ 3.56
2006 $ 3.72 $      - $       - $ 3.72
2005 $ 2.12 $ 1.88 $       - $ 4.00
2004 $ 2.16  $ 1.84  $       - $ 4.00
2003 $ 2.44  $ 1.56 $       - $ 4.00
2002 $ 2.64  $ 1.84  $       - $ 4.48
2001 $ 2.60  $ 2.36 $       - $ 4.96
2000 $ 3.20  $ 1.76 $       - $ 4.96
1999 $ 3.44  $ 1.40  $$ 0.12 $ 4.96
From June 29, 1998 to November 30, 1998 $ 1.64  $       - $       - $ 1.64

 * The Fund implemented a 1-for-4 reverse stock split with an ex-date of December 10, 2012.  Prior period distribution amounts have been restated to reflect the impact 
of the reverse stock split.

** Includes net capital gains recognized in the year and distributable as ordinary income in accordance with tax regulations.
 † The classification of these distributions for federal income tax purposes will be determined after the Fund’s fiscal year ending December 31, 2019. This is only an esti-

mate based on information available at this time and is subject to change. Actual amounts may be re-characterized among net investment income, capital gains, and
return of capital for tax purposes after the 2019 fiscal year end, although the exact amount is not estimable at June 30, 2019.

DISTRIBUTIONS 
Additional Information

(Unaudited)
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DISTRIBUTIONS
Additional Information

(Unaudited)

Terms and Conditions of the 2015 Amended Dividend Rein-
vestment Plan 
1. Each shareholder (the “Shareholder”) holding shares (the “Shares”)
of Dividend and Income Fund (the “Fund”) will automatically be a par-rr
ticipant in the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (the “Plan”), unless the
Shareholder specifically elects to receive all dividends and capital
gains in cash by notice to American Stock Transfer & Trust Company,
LLC, 6201 15th Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11219, 1-800-278-4353,
as agent under the Plan (the “Agent”). The Agent will open an account
for each Shareholder under the Plan in the same name in which such
Shareholder’s Shares are registered.

2. Whenever the Fund declares a capital gain distribution or an in-
come dividend payable in Shares or cash, participating Shareholders
will take the distribution or dividend entirely in Shares and the Agent
will automatically receive the Shares, including fractions, for the Share-
holder’s account in accordance with the following:

Whenever the Market Price (as defined in Section 3 below) per Share
is equal to or exceeds the net asset value per Share at the time Shares
are valued for the purpose of determining the number of Shares equiv-
alent to the cash dividend or capital gain distribution (the “Valuation
Date”), participants will be issued additional Shares equal to the
amount of such dividend divided by the lower of the Fund’s net asset
value per Share or the Fund’s Market Price per Share. Whenever the
Market Price per Share is less than such net asset value on the Valu-
ation Date, participants will be issued additional Shares equal to the
amount of such dividend divided by the Market Price. The Valuation
Date is the business day before the dividend or distribution payment
date. If the Fund should declare a dividend or capital gain distribution
payable only in cash, the Agent will, as purchasing agent for the par-rr
ticipating Shareholders, buy Shares in the open market or elsewhere,
for such Shareholders’ accounts after the payment date, except that
the Agent will endeavor to terminate purchases in the open market
and cause the Fund to issue the remaining Shares if, following the
commencement of the purchases, the Market Price of the Shares ex-
ceeds the net asset value. These remaining Shares will be issued by
the Fund at a price equal to the lower of the Fund’s net asset value per
Share or the Market Price.

In a case where the Agent has terminated open market purchases and
caused the issuance of remaining Shares by the Fund, the number of
Shares received by the participant in respect of the cash dividend or
distribution will be based on the weighted average of prices paid for
Shares purchased in the open market and the price at which the Fund
issues remaining Shares. To the extent that the Agent is unable to ter-rr
minate purchases in the open market before the Agent has completed
its purchases, or remaining Shares cannot be issued by the Fund be-
cause the Fund declared a dividend or distribution payable only in
cash, and the Market Price exceeds the net asset value of the Shares,
the average Share purchase price paid by the Agent may exceed the

net asset value of the Shares, resulting in the acquisition of fewer
Shares than if the dividend or capital gain distribution had been paid
in Shares issued by the Fund.

The Agent will apply all cash received as a dividend or capital gain dis-
tribution to purchase shares on the open market as soon as practica-
ble after the payment date of the dividend or capital gain distribution,
but in no event later than 45 days after that date, except when neces-
sary to comply with applicable provisions of the federal securities laws.
 
3. For all purposes of the Plan: (a) the Market Price of the Shares on
a particular date shall be the average of the volume weighted average
sale prices or, if no sale occurred, then the mean between the closing
bid and asked quotations, for the Shares quoted on the NYSE on each
of the five business days the Shares traded ex-dividend on the NYSE
immediately prior to such date, and (b) net asset value per share on
a particular date shall be as determined by or on behalf of the Fund.
 
4. The open market purchases provided for herein may be made on
any securities exchange on which the Shares are traded, in the over-
the-counter market, or in negotiated transactions, and may be on such
terms as to price, delivery, and otherwise as the Agent shall deter-rr
mine. Funds held by the Agent uninvested will not bear interest, and
it is understood that, in any event, the Agent shall have no liability in
connection with any inability to purchase Shares within 45 days after
the initial date of such purchase as herein provided, or with the tim-
ing of any purchases effected. The Agent shall have no responsibility
as to the value of the Shares acquired for the Shareholder’s account.
 
5. The Agent will hold Shares acquired pursuant to the Plan in non-
certificated form in the Agent’s name or that of its nominee. At no ad-
ditional cost, a Shareholder participating in the Plan may send to the
Agent for deposit into its Plan account those certificate shares of the
Fund in its possession. These Shares will be combined with those unis-
sued full and fractional Shares acquired under the Plan and held by
the Agent. Shortly thereafter, such Shareholder will receive a state-
ment showing its combined holdings. The Agent will forward to the
Shareholder any proxy solicitation material and will vote any Shares
so held for the Shareholder only in accordance with the proxy returned
by the Shareholder to the Fund.

6. The Agent will confirm to the Shareholder each acquisition for the
Shareholder’s account as soon as practicable but not later than 60
days after the date thereof. Although the Shareholder may from time
to time have an individual fractional interest (computed to three dec-
imal places) in a Share, no certificates for fractional Shares will be is-
sued. However, dividends and distributions on fractional Shares will be
credited to Shareholders’ accounts. In the event of a termination of a
Shareholder’s account under the Plan, the Agent will adjust for any
such undivided fractional interest in cash at the opening market value
of the Shares at the time of termination.
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DISTRIBUTIONS 
Additional Information

(Unaudited)

7. Any stock dividends or split Shares distributed by the Fund on
Shares held by the Agent for the Shareholder will be credited to the
Shareholder’s account. In the event that the Fund makes available to
the Shareholder the right to purchase additional Shares or other 
securities, the Shares held for a Shareholder under the Plan will be
added to other Shares held by the Shareholder in calculating the num-
ber of rights to be issued to such Shareholder. Transaction processing
may either be curtailed or suspended until the completion of any stock
dividend, stock split, or corporate action.

8. The Agent’s service fee for handling capital gain distributions or in-
come dividends will be paid by the Fund. The Shareholder will be
charged a pro rata share of brokerage commissions on all open mar-rr
ket purchases.

9. The Shareholder may terminate the account under the Plan by no-
tifying the Agent. A termination will be effective immediately if notice
is received by the Agent three days prior to any dividend or distribution
payment date. If the request is received less than three days prior to
the payment date, then that dividend will be invested, and all subse-
quent dividends will be paid in cash.

10. These terms and conditions may be amended or supplemented by
the Fund at any time or times but, except when necessary or appro-
priate to comply with applicable law or the rules or policies of the Se-
curities and Exchange Commission or any other regulatory authority,
only by mailing to the Shareholder appropriate written notice at least
30 days prior to the effective date thereof. The amendment or sup-
plement shall be deemed to be accepted by the Shareholder unless,
prior to the effective date thereof, the Agent receives written notice of
the termination of such Shareholder’s account under the Plan. Any

such amendment may include an appointment by the Fund of a suc-
cessor agent in its place and stead under these terms and conditions,
with full power and authority to perform all or any of the acts to be per-rr
formed by the Agent. Upon any such appointment of an Agent for the
purpose of receiving dividends and distributions, the Fund will be au-
thorized to pay to such successor Agent all dividends and distributions
payable on Shares held in the Shareholder’s name or under the Plan
for retention or application by such successor Agent as provided in
these terms and conditions.

11. In the case of Shareholders, such as banks, brokers, or nominees,
which hold Shares for others who are the beneficial owners, the Agent
will administer the Plan on the basis of the number of Shares certified
from time to time by the Shareholders as representing the total
amount registered in the Shareholder’s name and held for the account
of beneficial owners who are to participate in the Plan.

12. The Agent shall at all times act in good faith and agree to use its
best efforts within reasonable limits to insure the accuracy of all serv-
ices performed under this agreement and to comply with applicable
law, but assumes no responsibility and shall not be liable for loss or
damage due to errors unless the errors are caused by its negligence,
bad faith, or willful misconduct or that of its employees.

13. Neither the Fund nor the Agent will be liable for any act performed
in good faith or for any good faith omission to act, including without lim-
itation, any claim of liability arising out of (i) failure to terminate a
Shareholder’s account, sell shares, or purchase shares, (ii) the prices
at which shares are purchased or sold for the Shareholder’s account,
and (iii) the time such purchases or sales are made, including price
fluctuation in market value after such purchases or sales.
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The renewal of the investment management agreement (“IMA”) be-
tween Dividend and Income Fund (“Fund”) and the investment man-
ager, Bexil Advisers LLC (“Investment Manager”), was unanimously
approved by the Fund’s Board of Trustees (“Board”), including all
of the Fund’s trustees who are not “interested persons” of the Fund
(“Independent Trustees”) as defined under the Investment Com-
pany Act of 1940, as amended, at an in person meeting held on
March 11, 2019 (“Meeting”). In this connection, the Board consid-
ered a number of factors, including, among other things, informa-
tion that had been provided at other meetings, as well as
information furnished to the Board for the Meeting. Such informa-
tion included, among other things: information comparing the man-
agement fees of the Fund with a peer group of broadly comparable
funds as determined by Broadridge (“Broadridge”), an independent
provider of investment company data, which uses information ob-
tained from company reports, financial reporting services, periodi-
cals and other sources; information regarding the Fund’s
investment performance on an absolute basis and in comparison to,
among other things, a relevant peer group of funds (“Peer Group”)
and a benchmark index; the economic outlook and the general in-
vestment outlook in relevant investment markets; the Investment
Manager’s results and financial condition and the overall organi-
zation of the Investment Manager; the allocation of brokerage and
the benefits received by the Investment Manager as a result of bro-
kerage allocation; the Investment Manager’s trading practices, in-
cluding soft dollars; the Investment Manager’s management of
relationships with the Fund’s custodian, transfer agent, pricing
agents, brokers, and other service providers; the resources devoted
to the Investment Manager’s compliance efforts undertaken on be-
half of the Fund and the record of compliance with the compliance
programs of the Fund, the Investment Manager, and its affiliates;
the quality, nature, cost, and character of the administrative and
other non-investment management services provided by the In-
vestment Manager and its affiliates; the terms of the IMA; the In-
vestment Manager’s gifts and entertainment log; the reasonableness
and appropriateness of the fee paid by the Fund for the services de-
scribed in the IMA and whether it was the product of arm’s length
bargaining; the nature, extent, and quality of the services provided
by the Investment Manager; the fiduciary duty assumed by the In-
vestment Manager in connection with the services rendered to the
Fund and the business reputation of the Investment Manager and
its financial resources; the character and amount of other inciden-
tal or “fall-out” benefits received by the Investment Manager and its
affiliates from its association with the Fund; the extent to which
economies of scale would be realized as the Fund grows; whether
fee levels reflect these economies of scale for the benefit of Fund
investors; and comparisons of the services rendered and the
amounts paid under the IMA with those under other advisory con-
tracts, such as contracts of the same type between other invest-
ment advisers and other registered investment companies or other
types of clients (e.g., pension funds).

The Board also reviewed in detail and at length the Investment Man-
ager’s responses to the Board’s request for certain information re-
lated to, among other things:  the Investment Manager’s general
business, personnel, and operations; fees, profitability, and finan-
cial information; trading information; Fund performance; compli-
ance and legal; and other related matters.  The Board expressed
its satisfaction with the Investment Manager’s responses to its re-
quest for such information.

In considering the nature, extent, and quality of the management
services provided by the Investment Manager, the Board consid-
ered the Investment Manager’s management capabilities with re-
spect to the types of investments held by the Fund, including
information relating to the education, experience, and number of
investment professionals and other personnel who provide services
under the IMA. The Board also took into account the time and at-
tention devoted by management to the Fund. In this regard, the
Board noted that the Investment Manager is responsible for, among
other things, overseeing the selection of investments for the Fund,
making investment decisions for the Fund, monitoring the invest-
ment operations and composition of the Fund, and, in connection
therewith, monitoring compliance with the Fund’s investment ob-
jectives, policies, and restrictions, as well as the Fund’s compliance
with applicable law; monitoring brokerage selection, commissions
and other trading costs, quality of execution, and other brokerage
matters; and implementing the Board’s directives as they relate to
the Fund. Further, the Board considered that the Investment Man-
ager’s responsibilities include daily monitoring of investment, op-
erational, enterprise, legal, regulatory, and compliance risks as they
relate to the Fund. The Board evaluated the level of skill required to
manage the Fund and concluded that the resources available at
the Investment Manager are appropriate to fulfill effectively its du-
ties on behalf of the Fund. The Board noted that the Investment
Manager has managed the Fund for several years.  The Board indi-
cated its belief that a long term relationship with capable, consci-
entious personnel is in the best interests of the Fund.

The Board received information concerning the investment phi-
losophy and investment process applied by the Investment Man-
ager in managing the Fund. In this regard, Mr. Thomas Winmill, as
a portfolio manager of the Fund and Chairman of the Investment
Policy Committee of the Investment Manager, stated that the in-
vestment philosophy and/or investment process applied in man-
aging the Fund had not changed since the Board’s prior annual
review of the IMA.

The Board also considered the Investment Manager’s in-house re-
search capabilities as well as other resources available to the In-
vestment Manager’s personnel, including research services that
may be available to the Investment Manager as a result of securi-
ties transactions effected for the Fund. The Board concluded that

BOARD APPROVAL OF INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
Additional Information

(Unaudited)
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the Investment Manager’s investment process, research capabili-
ties, and philosophy were well suited to the Fund, given the Fund’s
investment objectives and policies.

In its review of comparative information with respect to the Fund’s
investment performance, the Board received information from
Broadridge comparing the Fund’s investment performance on an
absolute basis and to that of its Peer Group and a benchmark index.

After reviewing performance information with respect to the Fund,
the Board noted that the Fund’s total return (i) underperformed its
benchmark index in the one, two, three, four, five, and ten year pe-
riods ended December 31, 2018, (ii) outperformed the median total
return of its Peer Group in the three year period ended December
31, 2018, but underperformed in the one, two, four, five, and ten
year periods, and (iii) outperformed the average total return of its
Peer Group in the three year period ended December 31, 2018, but
underperformed in the one, two, four, five, and ten year periods.
The Board considered that the Investment Manager became the
Fund’s investment manager in February 2011 and that the Fund’s
performance prior to that time is attributable to its former invest-
ment manager. The Board discussed with personnel of the Invest-
ment Manager the factors that contributed to the Fund’s
underperformance and the steps that the Investment Manager had
taken, or intended to take, to seek to improve the Fund’s short and
long term performance. The Board concluded that the Fund’s per-
formance is being addressed and noted that it would continue to
monitor these efforts and the performance of the Fund.

The Board noted that performance is only one of the factors that it
deems relevant to its consideration of the IMA and that, after con-
sidering all relevant factors, it can reach a decision to renew the IMA
notwithstanding the Fund’s underperformance over certain periods.

With respect to its review of the fees payable under the IMA, the
Board considered information from Broadridge comparing the
Fund’s management fee and expense ratio to those of its Peer
Group. The Board observed that the Fund’s management fee based
on common and leveraged assets is higher than the median in its
Peer Group and its total expense ratio based on common and lever-
aged assets is identical to the median in its Peer Group. The Board
further observed that the Fund’s total expense ratio is in the “mid-
dle of the pack” as compared to its Peer Group. Accordingly, the
Board concluded that the Fund’s management fee and total ex-
pense ratio are reasonable in light of the quality of services re-
ceived and the level of assets managed. The Board also evaluated

any apparent or anticipated economies of scale in relation to the
services the Investment Manager provides to the Fund. The Board
considered that the Fund is a closed end fund that does not con-
tinuously offer shares and that, without daily inflows and outflows
of capital, there are limited opportunities for significant economies
of scale to be realized by the Investment Manager in managing the
Fund’s assets.

The information provided assisted the Board in concluding that the
fee paid by the Fund is within the range of those paid by compara-
ble funds within the fund industry and is fair and reasonable in light
of the quality of services received and the level of assets managed.
Further, the Board concluded that the Investment Manager’s fee
bears a reasonable relationship to the services rendered and has
been the product of arm’s length bargaining.

The Board also considered information regarding the character and
amount of other incidental benefits received by the Investment
Manager and its affiliates from its association with the Fund. The
Board concluded that potential “fall-out” benefits that the Invest-
ment Manager and its affiliates may receive, such as increased abil-
ity to obtain research services, appear to be fair and reasonable
and may, in some cases, benefit the Fund.

The Board also considered the profitability of the Investment Man-
ager from its association with the Fund, including historical prof-
itability information. In this regard, the Board considered the costs
of the services provided, and the profits realized, if any, by the In-
vestment Manager in connection with the operation of the Fund
and was satisfied that the profitability was not excessive under the
circumstances. In addition, the Board considered the financial sta-
bility of the Investment Manager during its deliberations.

The Board did not consider any single factor as controlling in de-
termining whether or not to renew the IMA. In assessing the infor-
mation provided by the Investment Manager and its affiliates, the
Board also noted that it was taking into consideration the benefits
to shareholders of investing in a Fund that is part of a fund complex
which provides a variety of shareholder services.

Based on its consideration of the foregoing factors and conclusions,
and such other factors and conclusions as it deemed relevant, the
Board, including all of the Independent Trustees, concluded that
the approval of the IMA, including the fee structure, is in the best
interests of the Fund.
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FAFACTS CFACTS TFACTS SFACTS  FACTS WWHHAATT DDOOEESS DDIIVVIIDDEENNDD AANNDD IINNCCOOMMEE FFUUNNDD DDOO WWIITTHH YYOOUURR PPEERRSSOONNAALL IINNFFOORRMMAATTIIOONN??

WhWhy? yWhy? ?Why?  Why? Financial companies choose how they share your personal information.  Federal law gives consumers the
right to limit some but not all sharing.  Federal law also requires us to tell you how we collect, share, and
protect your personal information.  Please read this notice carefully to understand what we do. 

WhWhat? aWhat? tWhat? ?What?  What? The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or service you have with
us.  This information can include:

Social Security number
Account balances
Transaction history 

Transaction or loss history
Account transactions
Retirement assets

When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as described in this notice. 

HoHowwHow? All financial companies need to share customers’ personal information to run their everyday business.  In 
the section below, we list the reasons financial companies can share their customers’ personal 
information; the reasons Dividend and Income Fund chooses to share; and whether you can limit this
sharing.

ReReasons we can share your personal information aReasons we can share your personal information sReasons we can share your personal information oReasons we can share your personal information nReasons we can share your personal information sReasons we can share your personal information  Reasons we can share your personal information wReasons we can share your personal information eReasons we can share your personal information  Reasons we can share your personal information cReasons we can share your personal information aReasons we can share your personal information nReasons we can share your personal information  Reasons we can share your personal information sReasons we can share your personal information hReasons we can share your personal information aReasons we can share your personal information rReasons we can share your personal information eReasons we can share your personal information  Reasons we can share your personal information yReasons we can share your personal information oReasons we can share your personal information uReasons we can share your personal information rReasons we can share your personal information  Reasons we can share your personal information pReasons we can share your personal information eReasons we can share your personal information rReasons we can share your personal information sReasons we can share your personal information oReasons we can share your personal information nReasons we can share your personal information aReasons we can share your personal information lReasons we can share your personal information  Reasons we can share your personal information iReasons we can share your personal information nReasons we can share your personal information fReasons we can share your personal information oReasons we can share your personal information rReasons we can share your personal information mReasons we can share your personal information aReasons we can share your personal information tReasons we can share your personal information iReasons we can share your personal information oReasons we can share your personal information nReasons we can share your personal information  Reasons we can share your personal information DoDoes Dividend and Income eDoes Dividend and Income sDoes Dividend and Income  Does Dividend and Income DDoes Dividend and Income iDoes Dividend and Income vDoes Dividend and Income iDoes Dividend and Income dDoes Dividend and Income eDoes Dividend and Income nDoes Dividend and Income dDoes Dividend and Income  Does Dividend and Income aDoes Dividend and Income nDoes Dividend and Income dDoes Dividend and Income  Does Dividend and Income IDoes Dividend and Income nDoes Dividend and Income cDoes Dividend and Income oDoes Dividend and Income mDoes Dividend and Income eDoes Dividend and Income  Does Dividend and Income 
FuFund sharenFund sharedFund share Fund sharesFund sharehFund shareaFund sharerFund shareeFund share?

CaCan you limit this nCan you limit this  Can you limit this yCan you limit this oCan you limit this uCan you limit this  Can you limit this lCan you limit this iCan you limit this mCan you limit this iCan you limit this tCan you limit this  Can you limit this tCan you limit this hCan you limit this iCan you limit this sCan you limit this  Can you limit this 
shsharingasharingrsharingisharingnsharinggsharing?

FFoorr oouurr eevveerryyddaayy bbuussiinneessss ppuurrppoosseess ––
such as to process your transactions, maintain your account(s), respond 
to court orders and legal investigations, or report to credit bureaus

Yes No

FFoorr oouurr mmaarrkkeettiinngg ppuurrppoosseess ––
to offer our products and services to you

Yes No

FFoorr jjooiinntt mmaarrkkeettiinngg wwiitthh ootthheerr nnoonnaaffffffffffff iilliiaatteedd ffiinnaanncciiaall ccoommppaanniieess No We don’t share

FFoorr oouurr aaffffffffffff iilliiaatteess’’ eevveerryyddaayy bbuussiinneessss ppuurrppoosseess ––
Information about your transactions and experiences

No We don’t share

FFoorr oouurr aaffffffffffff iilliiaatteess’’ eevveerryyddaayy bbuussiinneessss ppuurrppoosseess ––
Information about your creditworthiness 

No We don’t share

FFoorr oouurr aaffffffffffff iilliiaatteess ttoo mmaarrkkeett ttoo yyoouu Yes Yes

FFoorr nnoonnaaffffffffffff iilliiaatteess ttoo mmaarrkkeett ttoo yyoouu No We don’t share

ToTo Limit Sharing  To Limit Sharing LTo Limit Sharing iTo Limit Sharing mTo Limit Sharing iTo Limit Sharing tTo Limit Sharing  To Limit Sharing STo Limit Sharing hTo Limit Sharing aTo Limit Sharing rTo Limit Sharing iTo Limit Sharing nTo Limit Sharing gTo Limit Sharing  To Limit Sharing Call Dividend and Income Fund at 212-785-0900 –– our menu will prompt you through your choices; 
or
Mail the form below

PPlleeaassee nnoottee::
If you are a new customer, we can begin sharing your information 30 days from the date we sent this 
notice.  When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share yor ur information as described in this
notice.
However, you can contact us at any time to limit our sharing. 

 

QuQuestionseQuestionssQuestionstQuestionsiQuestionsoQuestionsnQuestionssQuestions? Call Dividend and Income Fund at 1-212-785-0900 or go to www.dividendandincomefund.com

……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….
MaMail-in Form iMail-in Form lMail-in Form -Mail-in Form iMail-in Form nMail-in Form  Mail-in Form FMail-in Form oMail-in Form rMail-in Form mMail-in Form  Mail-in Form 
LLeeaavvee BBllaannkk oorr
[If you have a joint 
account, your choice will
apply to everyone on
your account unless you
mark below.

 Apply my choice only 
to me] 

Mark if you want to limit:
  Do not allow your affiliates to use my personal informatioy n to market to me. 

Name MMaaiill ttoo::
Dividend and Income
Fund
11 Hanover Square, 12th

Floor 
New York, NY 10005 

Address
 
City, State, Zip 
Account # 

Mail to:
Dividend and Income Fund
11 Hanover Square
12th Floor
New York, NY 10005
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PaPage 2 gPage 2 ePage 2  Page 2 2Page 2  Page 2 

WhWho we aroWho we ar Who we arwWho we areWho we ar Who we araWho we arrWho we are

WWhhoo iiss pprroovviiddiinngg tthhiiss nnoottiiccee?? Dividend and Income Fund 

WhWhat we doaWhat we dotWhat we do What we dowWhat we doeWhat we do What we dodWhat we dooWhat we do
HHooww ddooeess DDiivviiddeenndd aanndd IInnccoommee FFuunndd pprrootteecctt
mmyy ppeerrssoonnaall iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn?? 

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use
security measures that comply with federal law.  These measures include computer
safeguards and secured files and buildings. 

HHooww ddooeess DDiivviiddeenndd aanndd IInnccoommee FFuunndd ccoolllleecctt
mmyy ppeerrssoonnaall iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn?? 

We collect your personal information, for example, when you

Open an account 
Buy securities from us 
Provide account information 
Give us your contact information 
Tell us where to send the money 

WWhhyy ccaann’’tt II lliimmiitt aallll sshhaarriinngg??  Federal law gives you the right to limit only

Sharing for affiliates’ everyday business purposes – information about your
creditworthiness
Affiliates from using your information to market to you 
Sharing for nonaffiliates to market to you

State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing.
WWhhaatt hhaappppeennss wwhheenn II lliimmiitt sshhaarriinngg ffoorr aann
aaccccoouunntt II hhoolldd jjooiinnttllyy wwiitthh ssoommeeoonnee eellssee??

Your choices will apply to everyone on your account –– unless you tell us otherwise.

DeDefinitionfDefinitioniDefinitionnDefinitioniDefinitiontDefinitioniDefinitionoDefinitionnDefinitions
AfffAfffffffffff iilliiaatteess Companies related by common ownership or control.  They can be financial and 

nonfinancial companies.

Dividend and Income Fund shares with our affiliates.

NNoonnaaffffffffffff iilliiaatteess Companies not related by common ownership or control.  They can be financial and 
nonfinancial companies.

Dividend and Income Fund does not share with nonaffiliates so they can
market their financial products or services to you. 

JJooiinntt mmaarrkkeettiinngg A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together market 
financial products or services to you. 

Dividend and Income Fund does not jointly market. 
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RESULTS OF THE ANNUAL MEETING 
An Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Fund was held on June 6,
2019 at 11 Hanover Square, 12th Floor, New York, New York 10005,
the Fund’s principal executive offices, for the following purposes:

1. To elect each of Peter K. Werner and Thomas B. Winmill to the Board
of Trustees of the Fund as a Class II Trustee to serve until the 2022 an-
nual meeting of shareholders, or thereafter when his successor is
elected and qualifies.

Peter K. Werner

Votes For Votes Withheld  

8,119,492 2,576,331

Thomas B. Winmill

Votes For Votes Withheld  

8,119,419 2,576,404 

2. If properly presented at the meeting, the following shareholder pro-
posal:

RESOLVED:  All investment advisory and management agreements be-
tween Dividend and Income Fund and Bexil Advisers LLC shall be ter-rr
minated by the Fund, pursuant to the right of stockholders as
embodied in Section 15(a)(3) of the Investment Company Act of 1940
and as required to be included in such agreements, at the earliest date
the Fund is legally permitted to do so; provided, however, that if the
Board proposes, and shareholders approve, at this meeting, a plan to
liquidate or open-end the Fund within one year, then the investment ad-
visory and management agreements between Dividend and Income
Fund and Bexil Advisers LLC shall remain in effect as long as necessary
to implement these actions.

Votes For Votes Against Abstained 

1,779,277 2,538,578 430,986
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Investment Manager 

Bexil Advisers LLC
11 Hanover Square
New York, NY 10005
1-212-785-0900 

Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar 

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC
6201 15th Avenue
Brooklyn, NY 11219
www.amstock.com
1-800-278-4353

Please note - There is no assurance that the Fund’s investment objectives will be attained.  Past performance is no guarantee of future results. You should consider the in-
vestment objectives, risks, and charges and expenses of the Fund carefully before investing.  The Fund’s investment policies, management fees, and other matters of inter-rr
est to prospective investors may be found in its filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) including its annual and semi-annual reports. To obtain a copy
of the reports, please call us toll-free at 855-411-6432 or download them at http://dividendandincomefund.com/literature/.  Please read the reports carefully before investing.

Shares of closed end funds frequently trade at a discount from their Net Asset Value (“NAV”).  This characteristic is a risk separate and distinct from the risk that the Fund's
NAV has decreased in the past, and therefore could decrease in the future, as a result of its investment activities.  Neither the Investment Manager nor the Fund can predict
whether shares of the Fund will trade at, below, or above NAV.  The risk of holding shares of the Fund that might trade at a discount is more pronounced for investors expecting
to sell their shares in a relatively short period of time after acquiring them because, for those investors, realization of a gain or loss on their investments is likely to be more
dependent upon the existence of a premium or discount than upon portfolio performance.  The shares of the Fund are designed primarily for long term investors and should
not be considered a vehicle for trading purposes.  The NAV of the Fund’s shares typically will fluctuate with price changes of the Fund's portfolio securities, and these fluc-
tuations are likely to be greater in the case of a fund which uses leverage, as the Fund may from time to time.  In the event that shares of the Fund trade at a premium to
NAV, there is no assurance that any such premium will be sustained for any period of time and will not decrease, or that the shares of the Fund will not trade at a discount
to NAV thereafter. The market price for the Fund is based on supply and demand which fluctuates daily based on many factors, such as economic conditions and global events,
investor sentiment, and security-specific factors.  

This report, including the financial statements herein, is provided for informational purposes only. This is not a prospectus, circular, or representation intended for use in the
purchase of shares of the Fund or any securities mentioned in this report. This report shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall therer
be any sale of, these securities in any state in which such offer, solicitation, or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any
such state, or an exemption therefrom.  The internet address for the Fund is included several times in this report as a textual reference only.  The information on the website
is not incorporated by reference to this report.

The Fund does not make available copies of its Statement of Additional Information because the Fund’s shares are not continuously offered, which means that the Fund's
Statement of Additional Information has not been updated since completion of the Fund's most recent offering and the information contained in the Fund's Statement of Ad-
ditional may have become outdated.

Investment products, including shares of the Fund, are not federally or Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insured, are not deposits or obligations of, or guar-rr
anteed by, any financial institution and involve investment risk, including possible loss of principal and fluctuation in value. Consult with your tax advisor or attorney regard-
ing specific tax issues.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements - Our views and opinions regarding the prospects of our portfolio holdings, the Fund, and the economy are “forward
looking statements” as defined under the U.S. federal securities laws which may or may not be accurate and may be materially different over future periods. Generally, the
words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “project,” “will,” “may,” “should,” “plan,” or the negative of such terms and similar expressions identify forward
looking statements, which generally are not historical in nature. Forward looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to
materially differ from the Fund’s historical experience and its current expectations or projections indicated in any forward looking statements. These risks include, but are
not limited to, equity securities risk, corporate bonds risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, leverage and borrowing risk, additional risks of certain securities in which the Fund
invests, market discount from NAV, distribution policy risk, management risk, and other risks discussed in the Fund’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
We disclaim any obligation to update or alter any forward looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.  Thus you should not place
undue reliance on forward looking statements, which speak only as of the date they are made. 

Section 23 Notice - Pursuant to Section 23 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, notice is hereby given that the Fund may in the future purchase its own
shares in the open market. These purchases may be made from time to time, at such times, and in such amounts, as may be deemed advantageous to the Fund, although
nothing herein shall be considered a commitment to purchase such shares.

Stock Data at June 30, 2019 
NYSE Market Price per Share $11.53

Net Asset Value per Share $15.09

Market Price Discount to Net Asset Value 23.6%

NYSE Ticker Symbol DNI

Net Asset Value Ticker Symbol XDNIX

CUSIP Number 25538A204

DividendandIncomeFund.com 
Visit us on the web at www.DividendandIncomeFund.com. The
site provides information about the Fund, including distributions,
press releases, and shareholder reports. For further information,
please email us at info@DividendandIncomeFund.com.

This report is for shareholder information. This is not a prospectus intended for use in the purchase or sale of Fund shares.

NOT FDIC INSURED       MAY LOSE VALUE       NOT BANK GUARANTEED

Dividend and Income Fund is part of a fund complex which includes Midas Fund, Midas Magic, and Foxby Corp.
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BOARD APPROVAL OF INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
Additional Information

(Unaudited)
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